
 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Monday, 20 February 2023.  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

Culture and 
Visitor 
Economy 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

     
 

 

Tuesday, 28 February 2023 at 10.00 am 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House,  

St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Committee 
Members: 

 

Councillor Judy Stevens (Chairman) 
Councillor Penny Robins (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Richard Cleaver, Councillor Paul Fellows, Councillor Jill Thomas, 
Councillor Mary Whittington and Vacancy (Alliance SK) 
 

Agenda 
 

 This meeting can be watched as a live stream, or at a later 
date, via the SKDC Public-I Channel 

 

 

1.   Apologies for absence 
 

 

2.   Disclosure of Interests 
 

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting. 
 

 

3.   Public Speaking 
 

The Council welcomes engagement from members of the public. To speak at this 
meeting please register no later than 24 hours prior to the date of the meeting via 
democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
https://southkesteven.public-i.tv/core/portal/home
mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk


 

 
4.   Minutes from the meeting held on 6 December 2022 

 

(Pages 3 - 10) 

5.   Updates from the previous meeting 
 

To consider actions agreed at the meeting held on 6 December 2022.  
 

(Page 11) 

6.   Announcements or updates from the Leader of the Council, Cabinet 
Members or the Head of Paid Service 
 

 

7.   Verbal presentation from the Chief Executive of Destination 
Lincolnshire 
 

 

8.   Update on Heritage Action Zone shop front improvements in 
Grantham 
 

The purpose of this report is to provide a progress update on the 
Grantham High Street Heritage Action Zone scheme and summary 
information on the Academy of Urbanism ‘Great Town’ Award 2022 and 
the Arts Fund ‘Reimagine’ Grant programme. 
 

(Pages 13 - 22) 

9.   Arts Service Transitional Funding (Verbal Update) 
 

 

10.   Sport and Physical Activity Strategy Action Plan six-monthly 
update 
 

To provide an update on the progress and delivery of the Sport and 
Physical Activity Strategy. 
 

(Pages 23 - 38) 

11.   Performance of LeisureSK Ltd 
 

To provide an update to the Culture and Visitor Economy Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee on the performance of LeisureSK Ltd against 
the leisure management contract objectives. 
 

(Pages 39 - 56) 

12.   Work Programme 2022-2023 
 

To consider the Committee’s Work Programme for 2022-2023. 
 

(Pages 57 - 60) 

13.   Any other business which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances decides is urgent 
 

 



1 
 

Minutes  
 

Culture and Visitor Economy 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

Tuesday, 6 December 2022, 10:00 
 

Council Chamber – South 
Kesteven House, St. Peter's Hill, 
Grantham. NG31 6PZ 

 

 

Committee Members present 
 

Councillor Judy Stevens (Chairman) 
Councillor Penny Robins (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Paul Fellows 
Councillor Jill Thomas 
Councillor Mary Whittington 
Councillor Richard Cleaver 
 

Other Members present 
 

Councillor Kelham Cooke (Leader of the Council) 
Councillor Adam Stokes (Deputy Leader of the Council) 
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew (Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor 
Economy) 
 

Officers  
 

Nicola McCoy-Brown (Director of Growth and Culture) 
Karen Whitfield (Assistant Director of Culture and Leisure) 
Jon Hinde (Head of Economic Development) 
Debbie Roberts (Head of Policy, Performance and Corporate Projects) 
Amy Pryde (Democratic Services Officer) 

 

 

 
27. Apologies for absence 

 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Amanda Wheeler. 

 
Councillor Richard Cleaver substituted for Councillor Amanda Wheeler.  

 
28. Disclosure of Interests 

 
There were none.  

 
29. Public Speaking 

 
There were no public speakers.  

 

3

Agenda Item 4



2 
 

30. Minutes from the meeting held on 6 September 2022 
 

It was proposed, seconded, and AGREED the minutes of the meeting held on 6 
September 2022 be confirmed as a correct record. 

 
31. Updates from the previous meeting 

 
All actions had been completed from the previous meeting.  

 
One Member highlighted their disappoint on the figures (180 businesses and 800 
consumers) provided around the ‘Hello SK’ App. It was noted that 800 consumers 
was a low figure in relation to the whole population of South Kesteven.  

 
The Leader of the Council confirmed that further promotion of the App would take 
place following purdah. Promotion of the App was included in the next edition of ‘SK 
Today’. Businesses were encouraged to sign up to the App and residents were 
urged to download the App.  

 
It was noted that recent social media posts included information in relation to 
Markets and that figures had improved.  

 
The Head of Economic Development notified the Committee that figures from the 
dashboard would be included at the next meeting, where Markets would be 
discussed.   

 
32. Announcements or updates from the Leader of the Council, Cabinet Members 

or the Head of Paid Service 
 

The Leader of the Council announced that the Council had been given approval for 
a bid into the UK Shared Prosperity Fund and further information would be 
forthcoming.  

 
It was queried as to how much money had been approved for the bid.  

 
The Leader of the Council confirmed that the financial figure approved was £3.8 
million over a 3 year period, which was revenue and capital funding.  

 
33. Mid-term performance indicators 

 
The South Kesteven Corporate Plan 2020-23 was approved by Council on 1 
October 2020.  It was agreed by Council that actions, key performance indicators 
(KPIs) and targets were to be developed by the relevant overview and scrutiny 
committee.  These actions and indicators were presented to this committee and 
agreed on 17 November 2020. 

 
The report provided an update on performance to the mid-year point of the 2022/23 
financial year and incorporated the changes recommended by the last KPI review to 

4



3 
 

outline areas of the council’s performance which were successful and to advise 
where challenges may lay. 

 
The report summary was as follows:  

 
2 of the actions are rated Green. These are actions which are on or above target as 
planned.  

 
2 actions are rated as Amber.  These are those off target by less than 10% or 
where milestone achievement is delayed but with resolution in place to be achieved 
within a reasonable timeframe.  

 
0 actions are rated Red.  These are those falling significantly below target or 
overdue with no specific resolution date planned.  

 
There were no areas of significant under performance identified in this report.  

 
One Member sought clarification around the Visitor Centre in Stamford: 

 

• Whether the Visitor Centre was going to be moved into the Arts Centre. 

• That an action relating to improving and investing in local Arts and Cultural 
venues across the District contradicted a previous decision made at a 
previous Full Council meeting to remove £69,000 of capital money from 
Stamford Arts Centre due to the priority outlining ongoing capital improvement 
works at the Arts Centre.  
 

The Leader of the Council confirmed that the Stamford Visitor Centre was run by 
volunteers, and they would require accessibility to the Arts Centre and how the 
volunteers would operate in terms of insurance would be explored. Officers were 
working on the potential move.  

 
It was highlighted that Stamford Arts Centre had received a lot of investment; 
£400,000 was due to be spent on the roof, alongside previous refurbishment of the 
ballroom and toilets. The Committee were reminded of the holistic approach of the 
Council in terms of the capital programme, and that spending would be prioritised 
on essential works rather than ‘nice to have’ projects.  

 
AGREED: 

 
1. Noted the contents of the 2022/23 Mid-Year performance report.  

 
2. Members to consider if any concerns highlighted by the report required 
additional investigation to be added to the work programme. 

 
34. Development of Visitor Economy Strategy 

 
Scarborough Tourism Economic Activity Monitor (STEAM) was a tourism economic 
impact modelling process which enabled measurement of tourism using local data, 

5



4 
 

tourism performance and visitor survey data.  As reported to this Committee on 6 
September 2022, in 2021 the annual study by STEAM revealed:  

 

• An upturn in tourist numbers had helped to boost South Kesteven’s visitor 
economy by 3.5% to £168.63 million.  
 

• There were 2,232 full-time equivalent people employed in the sector.  
 

The district is rich in assets with national and global visitor appeal and was a 
popular destination for day visiting. 2.72 million people visited in 2021, equating to 
3.41 million visitor days. 

 
With events taking place throughout the year, all indicators pointed to significant 
future growth in South Kesteven’s visitor economy. It is in this context, there was a 
need to prepare a Strategy that defines shared priorities and collaborative 
interventions by the public and private sectors to grow the visitor economy in South 
Kesteven. 

 
The intention was to produce the Strategy, to a timetable ready for approval to 
adopt in March 2023, based on three strategic priorities of:  

 
• creating compelling places to visit  
• building private sector marketing capacity, and  
• extending the benefits of tourism  

 
One Member raised concern as to why a specialist consultant was necessary for 
the whole procurement exercise. It was suggested that the procurement income be 
spent on current resources and meaningful workshops with Community Groups and 
Councillors to aid the development of the Visitor Economy Strategy for building 
projects and increasing the number of visitors. 

 
It was noted that the cost to the Council of appointing a qualified consultant would 
be in the region of £10,000. A query was raised on whether the Council was 
committed to spending the money on the consultant and whether the Council had 
the funding to do so.  

 
The importance of the Visitor Economy was emphasised, alongside the 
engagement across the whole District. It was encouraged that Members visit each 
town across the District to engage with communities, inviting local stakeholders to 
have their say in terms of a Visitor Economy Strategy and to encourage works with 
Destination Lincolnshire. It was confirmed that the monies would be available to 
carry out the procurement.  

 
The Leader of the Council highlighted that a specialist would be required to ‘draw 
up’ the Visitor Economy Strategy and assisting with engagement work.  

 
ACTION: For the Chief Executive of Destination Lincolnshire to be invited to 
the next Committee meeting on 28 February 2023. 

6



5 
 

 
The Chairman noted that successful workshops were held through lockdown 
restrictions via Zoom where meaningful conversations took place with different 
communities, however, the virtual workshops were dropped when restrictions were 
lifted. It was suggested that a program be created in order for Members to follow in 
terms of engaging with the population.  

 
The Leader of the Council noted that dates would need to be set in each of the 
towns, where stakeholders would be invited to attend and engage with local 
Members to put across their views.  

 
It was queried as to whether the workshops would be officer-led, and structures of 
consultation would be provided for each of the towns in the District.  It was further 
suggested that a conversation takes place with Officers to discuss possibility and 
administrative structure that enables workshops to happen.  

 
The Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor Economy suggested that the cross-
council working group be established to put ideas forward, then Officers can 
become involved.   

 
The Director of Growth and Culture expressed that the Council should go out to the 
market to secure an independent consultant, then group meetings could be 
arranged to gain feedback, which would be separate from the Cultural Strategy.  

 
The Leader of the Council noted that there were already informal groups within the 
private sector in terms of visitor attractions around the District that meet to discuss 
what could be done to encourage more people to visit the District. 

 
A query was raised on whether the Council would provide the appointed consultant 
with a targeted approach on what they were required to do.   

 
One Member raised concern around writing another strategy which sits on its own, 
as clear interrelationships could not be ignored. For example, attracting people for 
staycations would be supported via the local plan to outline a policy on change of 
use of buildings to allow rooms above shops to be converted. Other policies relating 
to car parking, transport, cooperation across Councils.  

 
The Leader of the Council highlighted that the Future High Street Funding in 
Grantham allowed units above retail shops to be converted. Current cooperation 
with Council’s was noted in relation to work with Melton Borough Council and 
Nottinghamshire County Council on the Grantham Canal. A query was raised at a 
previous meeting with Destination Lincolnshire on their engagement with 
Lincolnshire County Council and South Kesteven District Council.  

 
Clarification was sought on where a cross-council working group would come into 
the development of Visitor Economy Strategy and whether this would be 
established ahead of the appointment of a consultant or after.  

 

7



6 
 

The Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor Economy confirmed that Officers would 
arrange a cross-council working group meeting in January 2023. 

 
The Committee confirmed that they would prefer a cross-council working group for 
people be able to contribute to the discussion process.  

 
ACTION: For a cross-council working group to meet in January 2023 ahead of 
the appointment of a consultant to work around the Visitor Economy Strategy 
in the region of £10,000.  

 
AGREED: 

 
1. Agreed there was a need to develop a Strategy to grow South Kesteven’s 
visitor economy  

 
2. Endorsed the commencement of a procurement exercise to appoint a 
suitably qualified consultant to work with Officers and Members of the 
Committee to develop the Council’s Visitor Economy Strategy  

 
3. Considered the appropriateness of drawing together a cross-council 
working group to support the development of the Strategy ahead of the 
appointment of the consultant.  

 
35. Refresh of the Cultural Strategy - Consultant (Verbal Update) 

 
The Assistant Director of Culture and Leisure provided a verbal update to the 
Committee that highlighted the recent procurement to find a suitably qualified 
consultant to assist in the development of a refreshed Cultural Strategy for the 
District. 

 
The Council had received 30 expressions of interest, to which 10 tenders were 
received and evaluated in terms of the price submitted, quality of responses and 
experience of the consultants.  

 
The Council had appointed Red Quadrant as the preferred contractor, and work 
had commenced.  

 
A Committee working party and workshops in each of the market towns were 
planned to follow the Committee meeting, however, these had been delayed until 
January 2023 due to an extended period of purdah. 

 
A resident survey was due to be circulated, as well as a specific survey for all 
Members to contribute.  

 
One Member suggested that the workshop with Red Quadrant take place the same 
day as the cross-council working group for the visitor economy strategy.  

 

8



7 
 

It was confirmed that the Council had regular update meetings with Red Quadrant 
and dates were being secured for the workshop in line with consultation events 
taking place in the market towns.  

 
36. Work Programme 2022-2023 

 
The Committee noted the Work Programme 2022-2023.  

 
One Member highlighted that concern was raised at the previous meeting in relation 
to Grantham Market and the level of subsidy required. It was requested that this be 
included in the update on markets at the next meeting. 

 
The Leader of the Council confirmed that all the markets within South Kesteven 
would be reviewed with a holistic approach with all aspects considered. 

 
Members discussed the benefit that the markets provided to the local communities 
during the Covid-19 pandemic.  

 
It was requested that the update on markets included a lot of detail on how they 
could be improved and expanded.  

 
One Member noted that 16 pitches at Grantham market cost the Council £84,000, 
meaning each pitch cost £5000 per pitch, per year. It was suggested that this may 
be unsustainable and should be reviewed.  

 
The Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor Economy highlighted the importance of 
supporting traders and visitors of all the markets to review and explore options to 
make markets a viable visitor economy attraction.  

 
The Head of Economic Development confirmed that the Council had to pay 
business rates with no discount for Grantham market. The Committee were 
reassured that a colleague was currently assessing original charters of the markets 
dating back to 1600 ahead of the report coming to Committee on 28 February 2023.  

 
The Assistant Director of Culture and Leisure confirmed that a report on Arts 
Service Transitional Funding would be brought to the next Committee meeting. The 
Council, as part of a collaborative bid were unsuccessful for the next national 
portfolio organisation funding from the Arts Council.  

 
The Head of Economic Development confirmed that a report on Plaque Guides and 
Information Trails would be brought to the next Committee meeting. The report 
would outline that the Shared Prosperity fund would be utilised for the project.  

 
The Assistant Director for Culture and Leisure noted that the previous Sport and 
Physical Activity Strategy Action Plan six-monthly update was discussed in June 
2022, therefore, this would be brought to a future meeting.  

 

9



8 
 

The Chairman requested that the Development of Visitor Economy Strategy and 
Refresh of the Cultural Strategy would be incorporated within the Work Programme.  

 
37. Any other business which the Chairman, by reason of special circumstances 

decides is urgent 
 

There were none.  
 

38. Close of meeting 
 

The Chairman closed the meeting at 10:58. 
 
 

10



Action Sheet 
Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

To provide members with an update on actions agreed at the 6 December 2022 meeting.  

 
Minute 

no. 
Agenda Item Action(s) Assigned to Response/Status Deadline 

 
34 

 
Development of 
Visitor Economy 

Strategy  

 
For the Chief Executive of Destination 
Lincolnshire to be invited to the next 
Committee meeting on 28 February 2023.  

 

 
Nicola McCoy-Brown 

(Director of Growth and 
Culture) 

 
The Chief Executive of 

Destination Lincolnshire would 
be attending the meeting on 28 

February 2023.  
  

 
Complete  

 
34 

 
Development of 
Visitor Economy 

Strategy 

 
For a cross-council working group to meet in 
January 2023 ahead of the appointment of a 
consultant to work around the Visitor 
Economy Strategy in the region of £10,000 

 
Nicola McCoy-Brown 

(Director of Growth and 
Culture) 

 
Draft invitation to tender 

documentation prepared for 
review by the Chairman and Vice-

Chairman of Culture Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee. 

 
 

 
Ongoing 

 

 

11

A
genda Item

 5



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

       

Culture and Visitor 
Economy Overview 
and Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
 

28 February 2023 
 
Report of Councillor Kelham Cooke, 
Leader of the Council 
 
 

 

Grantham High Street Heritage Action Zone – 

February 2023 Update 
 

Report Author 

Claire Saunders, High Street Heritage Action Zone Project Manager 

  Claire.saunders@investsk.co.uk 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

The purpose of this report is to provide a progress update on the Grantham High Street 

Heritage Action Zone scheme and summary information on the Academy of Urbanism 

‘Great Town’ Award 2022 and the Arts Fund ‘Reimagine’ Grant programme.  

  

 

Recommendation 

 

It is recommended Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee  

1. Agrees to receive a copy of the Conservation Area Management Plan for 
Grantham at a future meeting to consider recommendations made within it. 

 

 

 

 

 

13

Agenda Item 8

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No 

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

Growth and our economy 

 

Which wards are impacted? Grantham St Wulfram’s Ward. 

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, staffing, 

community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s declaration 

of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 The total capital and revenue budget in 2022/23 is £512,872. This is comprised of 

£373,463 in grant funding from Historic England and £148,409 in match funding 

from the Council. The annual allocation from Historic England must be spent within 

the financial year. 

 

1.2 The funding split for capital grants is 60% Historic England and 40% South 

Kesteven District Council. Grant awards will fund a maximum of 80% of project 

costs.  The remainder of the project costs are funded by the property owner/tenant.  

 

1.3 Grants and projects up to the value of £200,000 are assessed by the Board and 

approved by the relevant senior officer through their existing delegated powers. 

Grants of £200,000 and above are assessed by the Board and referred to Cabinet 

for recommendation to Historic England for approval. Any grant which results in a 

contribution from Historic England of £50,000 or more, is referred to Historic 

England for formal approval.  

 

Completed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Assistant Director of Finance 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.4 The programme is overseen by the combined Future High Street Fund and High 

Street Heritage Action Zone Project Board (the Board), made up of elected 

Members, Senior Officers and a representative of Historic England.  

 

Consult with Alan Robinson, Graham Watts or Mandy Braithwaite (Do not delete) 

 

14



Risk and Mitigation 

 

1.5 Under the grant conditions imposed by the Treasury, it is not possible for grant 

funding to be rolled forwards into future financial years. As such, any underspend 

is lost.  

 

1.7 There is currently £62,000 of unallocated funding for capital projects which is within 

the 2023/2024 delivery budget. While there is a high degree of confidence in the 

delivery programme for capital projects this financial year, to mitigate against any 

underspend and minimise the exposure of the Council to financial risk, this funding 

will not be allocated until April 2023.  

 

Consult with Tracey Elliot (Delete if not applicable) 

 

Health and Safety 

 

1.8  Contractors are responsible for maintaining appropriate health and safety on site 

and must comply with all relevant legislation.  

 

1.9 Similarly, third party partners responsible for delivering activity through the Cultural 

Programme or commissioned to deliver other works through the High Street 

Heritage Action Zone, are responsible for maintaining appropriate health and safety 

provisions during delivery of activities. 

 

Consult with Phil Swinton (Delete if not applicable) 

 

Diversity and Inclusion 

 

1.10 Care is given to ensure community engagement and cultural activities are as 

inclusive as possible. All activities funded through the High Street Heritage Action 

Zone and associated Cultural Programme are provided to the public free of charge.  

 

Consult with Craig Spence (Delete if not applicable) 

 

Is an Equality Impact Assessment required? No 

 

Climate Change 

 

1.11 The programme encourages the retention of as much original material as possible. 

While this is primarily to maintain the historic fabric of buildings, it also prevents 

unnecessary use of new resources. Traditional building methods are often lower 

carbon options than their modern counterparts, for example the use of lime-based 

mortars and renders generates less CO2 than the equivalent volumes of cement-

based products.  

 

15



1.12 The scheme acknowledges the amount of embodied carbon within historic 

buildings, and ultimately supports bring vacant or underutilised properties back in 

to use, reducing the requirement for new build properties.  

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1  Grantham’s High Street Heritage Action Zone programme’s approach contributes 

directly to South Kesteven District Council’s Corporate Plan (2020-2023) vision 

which aims to establish South Kesteven as the best district in which to live, work 

and visit. Protecting South Kesteven’s heritage assets contributes to a sense of 

place. Investment in heritage and culture, in turn, generates more spending in the 

local economy. 

 

2.2  The Grantham High Street Heritage Action Zone programme is in its third year of 

delivery and will run until 31 March 2024.  

 

2.3 For ease of reading, this report is structured with five subsets relating to the High 

Street Heritage Action Zone programme, followed by an update on the Academy of 

Urbanism ‘Great Town’ Award 2022 and the Arts Fund ‘Reimagine’ grants 

programme.  

 

Grantham’s High Street Heritage Action Zone 

 

2.4 As reported to the Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

on 8 September 2021, the High Street Heritage Action Zone programme is split into 

two main areas of delivery as follows:  

 

• a capital grants programme 

• a revenue funding stream which facilitates staffing, engagement activity, 

resource building, interpretation projects and cultural activity. 

  

2.5  Eligibility for the grant schemes is limited by the terms of the funding agreement 

with Historic England.  Properties must be located on High Street, Westgate, the 

Market Place or Watergate, (with a priority on Westgate and Marketplace) and must 

have been built prior to 1939. Applicants must have the legal ability to accept the 

grant funding, typically the property owner. Tenants with full maintaining leases may 

apply with the written permission of the property owner.  

 

2.6 The majority of funding within the scheme supports the delivery of capital projects, 

these can be considered to fall under either the ‘Key Building Regeneration 

Scheme’ or the ‘Shopfront regeneration scheme’. There are two projects under 

delivery through the ‘Key Building’ scheme and six currently being delivered through 

the ‘Shopfront Regeneration Scheme’  

 

(a) Key Building schemes: Westgate Hall and 71 High Street  

 

16



2.7 The two key building projects of Westgate Hall and 71 High Street are expected to 

leverage circa £120,000 in private sector match funding, with the potential of an 

additional £250,000 private sector investment generated by the fitout of Westgate 

Hall by the proposed tenant.  

 

Westgate Hall 

2.8 The single most significant capital project within the High Street Heritage Action 

Zone programme is the regeneration of Westgate Hall. Westgate Hall is a grade II 

listed former corn exchange, built in 1852, which was last used as a night club. It 

has been vacant for five years and is currently in very poor condition.  

 

2.9  On 12 July 2022, Cabinet approved a grant award of up to £300,000 for the 

regeneration of Westgate Hall with a view to bringing the building back into use as 

a restaurant and the potential to create approximately 30 jobs.  

 

2.10    The funding has made it viable for the property owner to carry out works to the 

building by addressing the conservation deficit on the property – that is the cost 

required to complete works more than what the property will be worth when the 

works are completed. 

 

2.11    The project has not been without its challenges.  Most notably the impact of rapidly 

increasing prices. This has resulted in the need to scale down the scope of the 

schedule of works to ensure the project remains deliverable. For example, a 

reduction (from 12 to three) of octagonal skylight reinstatement over the main hall 

of the building. The grant funded elements of work will focus on structural repairs to 

the building, the reinstatement of historically appropriate glazing, works to the roof 

and masonry repairs. 

 

2.12   In addition to increasing costs, the timeline for delivery has also provided challenges 

to the project. The Heritage Action Zone Programme Manager will continue to work 

closely with the project architect (Evans McDowell Ltd) and the contractors 

(Messenger BCR) to ensure the programme runs to time and coordinate with 

Historic England as necessary. Encouragingly, works to the property have now 

commenced, with the erection of scaffolding having taken place on 30 January 

2023.  

 

71 High Street 

 

2.13   71 High Street has experienced delays in delivery due to both material and contractor 

availability. This has resulted in the programme significantly over running its original 

completion date of March 2022. The Programme Manager is working closely with 

the property owners and the project architect (Conception Architects) to monitor the 

contractors progress to ensure the programme of works is completed within this 

financial year.  

 

17



2.14   The property owners are aware they will not be able to draw down any funding for 

the project for works completed after 31 March 2023, and therefore will be liable for 

the full cost of any works not completed after this time. 

 

(b) Shopfront Regeneration Schemes 

 

2.15 There are currently six shopfront regeneration grant schemes underway, and 

interest has been received with regards to a further four properties.  As with the 

larger key buildings programme, the significant increase in cost of projects resulted 

in the need to negotiate a change to the original grant programme with Historic 

England.  

 

2.16  Inflation has resulted in tenders for shopfront regeneration projects being returned 

at two to three times the cost seen in previous years.  As such the maximum 

£25,000 grant offered through the scheme was not sufficient to bridge the viability 

gap for property owners.  These cost increases resulted in the schemes being 

unviable for property owners to bring forward. Unlike upper floor conversion works 

supported by the Future High Street Fund, works to shopfronts do not significantly 

impact the value of a property, and as such the viability for delivering schemes is a 

narrow margin.  

 

2.17   The Programme Manager negotiated with both Historic England and property 

owners to determine what would make projects viable.  Historic England agreed the 

maximum cap of £25,000 per project could be waived for new projects as long as 

the grant intervention rates of 60% of the cost of repairs and 80% of the costs of 

reinstatement was maintained, and the budget was not exceeded.  

 

2.18    As a result, five shopfront schemes (in addition to 68 Westgate which was an 

existing project) have been brought forward. Shopfront grant schemes currently 

underway or due to begin delivery in this financial year are illustrated in Table 1.  

 

Table 1: Shopfront Schemes 

Project 
  

Total Eligible 
Costs 
(excluding 
VAT and 
Contingency) 

Total Grant Property 
Owners 
Contribution  

Intervention 
Rate 

74 Westgate: 
Kays of Grantham 

£49,031 £32,500 £16,531 66% 

1 Market Place: 
Prime Comfort 

£71,893 £32,500 £39,393 45% 

21-22 Market Place: 
Vacant 

£87,930 £50,000 £37,930 57% 

17-18 High Street: 
Grantham Pharmacy 

£153,753 £75,000 £78,753 49% 

18



5 Market Place: 
Lindpet House   

£18,440 £13,050 £5,390 71% 

68 Westgate:  
Delight pizza 

£33,000 £25,000 £8,000 76% 

 

2.19  Although this alteration to the grant scheme will result in the delivery of fewer 

schemes than proposed in the original High Street Heritage Action Zone bid, it has 

insured deliverable schemes have been brought forward.  

 

2.20 Whilst the number of schemes has reduced, there has been a significant increase 

in the level of private sector investment leveraged. When first estimated it was 

believed the delivery of 12 shopfront schemes and three key building projects would 

leverage between £150,000 – £200,000 in private sector contributions. However, 

the shopfront projects highlighted in Table 1, will generate £185,997 in private 

sector contributions.  

 

2.21 In addition, private sector contributions to 71 High Street (Key Building) will generate 

£19,923, and Westgate Hall will contribute £100,000 from the property owner and 

an additional £200,000 – 250,000 in investment for fitout of the property. This gives 

an estimate of the private sector investment leveraged by scheme as £505,000. 

 

2.22 Alongside the capital elements of the High Street Heritage Action Zone programme, 

the funding also provides for projects which enable community engagement, a wider 

understanding of Grantham’s heritage, and projects which will support improved 

management and conservation of Grantham’s Heritage. 

 

(c) Conservation Area Management Plan for Grantham 

 

2.23 In November 2022, Heritage Lincolnshire was commissioned to produce an 

updated Conservation Area Management Plan for Grantham. This document will 

bring up to date the existing management plan (last revised in 2009).  

 

2.24 The update will consider changes in national planning policy and will also look 

forward at how opportunities generated thorough the High Street Heritage Action 

Zone, Future High Street Fund and other regeneration programmes can be 

developed upon in the future, should additional funding become available.  In part, 

this review will consider community feedback which was received through the 

Community Charrette process which was run in April 2022 (see paragraph 2.26).  

 

2.25 A draft document will be completed by the end of March 2023 for consultation with 

Members and the public as necessary.  

 

(d) Community Charette (consultation) 

 

19



2.26 Kevin Murray Associates were commissioned to undertake a Community Charette 

(consultation) which asked local residents and stakeholders to participate in the 

development of a vision for Grantham in 2045. 

 

2.27 The process took place over three days, where participants joined discussions and 

activity to highlight their priorities for the town. Priorities highlighted included:  

 

• Town centre accessibility 

• Creating a pedestrian friendly town  

• Developing town centre greening 

• Supporting Arts and Cultural offer 

• Improving internal and external perceptions of Grantham.  

 

2.28  Following on from this work, initial discussions have been held with the Woodland 

Trust to build stronger links and encourage their involvement in potential future 

street greening projects within Grantham.  As Grantham is the headquarters of the 

Woodland Trust, they are keen to be more involved in future projects and have 

indicated there may be support with funding.  

 

(e) Community engagement and heritage interpretation activity 

 

2.29  Other community engagement and heritage interpretation activity which will be 

delivered within this financial year includes the production of a colouring book which 

highlights and celebrates the Trigge-Chained Library, exploring options for the 

enhanced delivery of heritage trails, and a dedicated lamppost banner campaign 

highlighting historic imagery of the town centre.   

 

2.30  The High Street Heritage Action Zone Cultural Programme continues to deliver 

cultural activity in support of the High Street Heritage Action Zone. This is funded 

by an additional £90,000 grant from Historic England and the National Lottery 

Heritage Fund over three years, for work to be delivered by the Cultural Consortium.  

 

2.31 Over the previous 12 months Grantham Dramatic Society have run a programme 

of costumed tours which they will continue to deliver for the remainder of the 

programme, as well as developing methods to make these more accessible, 

including producing audio tours (due to launch in 2023/2024). Chantry Dance are 

currently in rehearsals for ‘Ghost Dances’ – a dance piece based on the music of 

Grantham born composer Nicolas Maw, (Guildhall Arts Centre 25 to 26 April 2023)   

 

2.32 The delivery of Grantham Arts’ Community Print and Community Ceramics projects 

will be basing their activity from Grantham Museum and will take place later in 2023. 

 

2.33  The High Street Heritage Action Zone programme aligns closely with the Future 

High Street Fund, and project managers of both schemes continue to work closely 

together to ensure that complementary work maximises the impact of the funding.  

 

20



Academy of Urbanism’s ‘Great Town’ Award 2022 

 

2.34 The regeneration efforts in Grantham are beginning to garner significant recognition 

within the industry. This has included Grantham being nominated for the Academy 

of Urbanism’s ‘Great Town’ Award 2022. The Awards recognise places which are 

great examples of urban regeneration and place making. After a competitive 

assessment process Grantham reached the final of the awards alongside Inverness 

and Dun Laoghaire (the eventual winners).  

 

 The Arts Fund ‘Reimagine’ Grants programme 

 

2.35 Alongside the High Street Heritage Action Zone programme, engagement is 

underway to support Grantham Museum with their development aims.  This has 

included assisting the Museum Board in developing an application to The Arts Fund 

‘Reimagine’ Grants programme. 

 

2.36  The Museum were successful in securing £18,600 which will provide for support in 

building their operational capacity, volunteer development and training, and 

curatorial support. The funding will be supplemented by £1,500 from the High Street 

Heritage Action Zone programme which will support public consultation into how 

Grantham residents and visitors would like to see the museum explore, highlight 

and present the town’s history.      

 

 

3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 Grantham conservation area is currently considered ‘at risk’ by Historic England. 

The deterioration of the town centre heritage was of particular concern, and as such 

Historic England were keen to support the High Street Heritage Action Zone in 

Grantham.  

 

4. Other Options Considered 
 

4.1 The Council could have decided not to commission a Conservation Area 

Management Plan for Grantham.  However, without this intervention it is likely retail 

properties within the town centre would continue to deteriorate, and historic features 

and character would be lost.  Therefore the ‘do nothing’ option was discounted.  

 

5. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

5.1 The report recommends the continued support for the High Street Heritage Action 

Zone programme to facilitate the ongoing regeneration of Grantham town centre. 

 

7. Background Papers 
 

21



7.1 Grantham high Street Heritage Action Zone Scheme – Report to Cabinet, published 

12 July 2022, available online at:  

https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s35107/Covering%20Report.

pdf 

 

7.2 Update report on Grantham High Street Heritage Action Zone Project - Report to 

Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee, published 8 

September 2021, available online at: 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s30754/HAZ%20Report.pdf 

 

22

https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s35107/Covering%20Report.pdf
https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s35107/Covering%20Report.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s30754/HAZ%20Report.pdf


 
 

       

Culture and Visitor 
Economy Overview 
and Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
 

28 February 2023 
 
Report of Councillor Adam Stokes, 
Deputy Leader of the Council and 
Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Leisure 
 

 

 

Sport and Physical Activity Strategy 
 

Report Author 

Beth Goodman, Leisure Officer 

   Bethany.goodman@southkesteven.gov.uk  

 

Purpose of Report 

 

To provide an update on the progress and delivery of the Sport and Physical Activity 

Strategy. 

 

Recommendations 

In noting the progress and delivery of the Sport and Physical Activity Strategy for 
South Kesteven, it is recommended the Culture and Visitor Economy Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee: 

1. Considers the results of the latest Active Lives data available for South 
Kesteven and agree to consider the results of future Active Lives survey data 
as part of the regular six-monthly updates provided. 

2. Suggest enhancements to the extent and clarity of the information produced 
for the next six-monthly update report. 

 

 

23

Agenda Item 10

mailto:Bethany.goodman@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No 

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

Healthy and strong communities 

 

Which wards are impacted? Two or more wards 

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, staffing, 

community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s declaration 

of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 There are no financial implications for the Council in relation to this report.  The work 

completed to date has been undertaken within identified budgets. If any initiatives 

are identified which require budget or investment, then an appropriate business 

case will be developed which identifies the cost and the associated benefit to the 

community. 

 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Assistant Director of 

Finance 

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2 There are no legal and governance implications arising from this report. 

 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Graham Watts, Assistant Director of 

Governance and Monitoring Officer  

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1  The Council’s Corporate Plan (2020 – 2023) identifies Healthy and Strong 

Communities as a key priority. To underpin this priority, the Council’s Leisure Team 

has been implementing the actions identified in the Sport and Physical Activity 

Strategy (the Strategy) for the district, targeting key areas and working with partners 

to provide opportunities for residents and visitors to live healthy, active lifestyles.  

 

2.2 This Committee last received an update report relating to the Sport and Physical 

Activity Strategy and Active Lives Survey data eight months ago. For ease of 

24



reading the remainder of this report is broken into the two keys areas with subsets 

as follows:  

 

A. An overview of the work undertaken to support the Sport and Physical Activity 

Strategy and accompanying action plan  

 

- Physical Activity Initiatives for Council employees 

- Partnership and collaborative working  

- Events 

 

B. Active Lives Survey 

 

A. An overview of the work undertaken to support the Sport and 

Physical Activity Strategy and accompanying action plan  
 

2.3 A review of the Council’s website and social media activity has been undertaken 

with a view to continuing to support a variety of stakeholders and organisations with 

their events, and to provide residents with physical activity opportunities across 

South Kesteven. This includes a link to the Slow Ways initiative which was 

discussed at the previous Committee meeting in June 2022. Health and fitness 

(southkesteven.gov.uk) 

 

Physical Activity Initiatives for Council employees 

 

2.4 Physical Activity initiatives for Council employees were implemented in January 

2023, starting with the #TeamSK step challenge in which 120 participants enrolled. 

A range of other activities have commenced such as the Wednesday Walk, which 

averages eight walkers per week, and weekly ‘Let’s Get Physical’ information packs 

which are distributed to all staff and include diet and wellbeing advice.  

 

2.5 A week of free fitness classes at Bourne and Grantham took place during January 

2023 where 11 Council employees trialled fitness classes to kickstart a new habit.  

Positive feedback was obtained about the wellbeing initiatives and a total of 288 

views were recorded on the digital information packs.  

 

Partnership and collaborative working 

 

2.6 Officers have continued to develop strong collaboration with our partner 

organisations, stakeholders and communities, without them achieving the Council’s 

corporate ambition of Healthy and Strong Communities would not be possible. 

Officers from the Council’s Leisure Team have actively been attending:  

 

• Monthly leisure leads meetings with Active Lincolnshire 

• Monthly UKActive webinars 

• Workshops with Sport England and the Chief Cultural and Leisure Officers 

Association (CLOA) 

25

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8616
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8616


• The Ageing and Physical Activity network meetings, led by The University of 

Lincoln to stay up to date with the latest trends and remain up to date with the 

regional and national picture. 

 

2.7 In November 2022, Officer’s attended the Association for Public Service Excellence 

(APSE) Sports and Leisure Seminar which looked at a range of leisure specific 

challenges including decarbonisation, ageing facilities and the rise in local authority 

trading companies managing leisure facilities.  

 

 Active Lincolnshire 

 

2.8 The ‘Activity Finder’ developed by Active Lincolnshire, now boasts an impressive 

260 activities or clubs on the website, providing residents in South Kesteven with 

an online tool to find activities in their local area. 

https://www.activelincolnshire.com/get-involved/lets-move-lincolnshire/club-and-

activity-finder 

 

2.9 The online tool is constantly growing, and the Council’s Leisure Team are actively 

promoting the Club and Activity Finder to all clubs and organisations they work with.  

 

2.10 In collaboration with Active Lincolnshire and the Council’s Housing Team, work has 

begun to identify opportunities for physical activity and wellbeing for residents living 

in sheltered housing and council houses within South Kesteven. As part of a 

workshop, emphasis was placed on gaining a better understanding of the lives of 

the residents, the places they live, and the connection points for residents within 

various council services. Action points from this workshop were to implement 6-

week touch points, identify physical activity opportunities within sheltered housing, 

and educate residents on free and low-cost activities available. 

 

 We are Undefeatable 

 

2.11 Council Officers have been working in partnership with ‘We are Undefeatable’, 

which is a campaign consisting of fifteen leading health and social care charities 

and is funded by the National Lottery in conjunction with Sport England.  The aim is 

to support people living with a range of long-term health conditions to move more 

in a way that works for them. More details are available on the We Are Undefeatable 

website available online at: https://weareundefeatable.co.uk/ 

 

 One You Lincolnshire 

 

2.12 One You Lincolnshire is the county’s free health and wellbeing programme 

designed to help residents to become healthier with a variety of free activities.  

Support is provided to help individuals make small, sustainable changes to improve 

their health and wellbeing and live a longer, happier life.  
 

26

https://www.activelincolnshire.com/get-involved/lets-move-lincolnshire/club-and-activity-finder
https://www.activelincolnshire.com/get-involved/lets-move-lincolnshire/club-and-activity-finder
https://weareundefeatable.co.uk/


2.13 In January 2023, the Council supported One You Lincolnshire with the launch of 

their new programme ‘Heart & Sole’, using Wyndham Park Visitor Centre as the 

hub for the launch. A total of 57 residents registered for the 12-week programme 

targeted to get residents moving who were not completing the desired 150 minutes 

of physical activity per week. 

  

2.14 LeisureSK Ltd have benefitted from an increase on registrations for their Exercise 

on Prescription programme.  This is 12-week structured physical activity 

programme following referral by a health care professional and is aimed at those 

doing less than 150 mins of physical activity a week.  The programme is funded by 

One You Lincolnshire and there are currently 50 participants on the programme 

across South Kesteven, with a further 51 on the waiting list. 

 

Events 

 

2.15 The table below details events which have been supported or organised by the 

Council’s Leisure Team: 

 

Name of event, date and 
location 

Further details on event 

SK’s Wellbeing Event   
 
25 February 2023 at the 
Jubilee Life Centre, 
Grantham 

The Council’s Leisure Team have also contributed 
to organise SK’s Wellbeing Event. A range of 
organisations were present to encourage physical 
activity suitable for all residents. 

Healthy Living with 
Long Term 
Conditions’  
 
20 February 2023 at 
Stamford Arts Centre 

This event was free of charge and available for 
members of the public to attend. The Council 
partnered with SHEAC (Stamford Health, 
Education and Awareness Charity), Mindspace 
Stamford, One You Lincolnshire and ‘We are 
Undefeatable’ for this event. The event focussed 
on supporting those living with long-term health 
conditions, providing opportunities to seek 
valuable advice on undertaking physical activity, 
from a range of organisations. 

Mental Health 
Community Connector 
Event 
 
3 February 2023 at 
Stamford Arts Centre 

Alongside Stamford Health Education and 
Awareness Charity (SHEAC), We are 
Undefeatable, Mindspace Stamford and the NHS 
Neighbourhoods Team, the Council hosted a 
Mental Health Community Connector Event. 
Thirty-one Stamford based organisations came 
together to discuss ways and techniques to 
support people’s mental health and well-being, 
and to meet others in the community to develop 
collaborative working. The aim of the event was to 
enable GP surgeries and social prescribers to 
work more efficiently with one another. 

27

https://www.healthwatchlincolnshire.co.uk/news/2020-11-27/stamford-health-education-and-awareness-charity
https://www.healthwatchlincolnshire.co.uk/news/2020-11-27/stamford-health-education-and-awareness-charity


National Fitness Day , 
part of the ‘Fitness Unites 
Us’ movement 
 
20 to 25 September 2022 

The Council’s Leisure Team worked alongside 
LeisureSK Ltd to ensure activity delivered both in 
and outside of the leisure centres aligns to the 
Council’s Sport and Physical Activity Strategy. 
LeisureSK Ltd released a timetable of free fitness 
classes and swimming sessions from 20 to 25 
September 2022 in aid of National Fitness Day.  

 

2.16 The information provided in Appendix A, outlines activity and highlights planned 

future actions. 

 

B. Active Lives Survey 
 

2.17 Since the adoption of the Strategy in December 2021, the latest Active Lives Survey 

data has been published including data on both adults and young people. This 

information is available online at https://activelives.sportengland.org 

 

2.18 The survey results for adults (16 years+) show that during this period, 54.7% of 

adults in South Kesteven were considered active, completing at least 150 minutes 

of activity a week. 15% were considered fairly active, completing 30-149 minutes of 

activity per week. However, 30.2% adults were considered inactive, completing less 

than 30 minutes activity a week. The results demonstrate a 6.8% decline in those 

considered active from the data available November 2019 – November 2020. 

 

2.19 The survey data available for children and young people looks at activity levels by 

academic year, with the most recent academic year being 2021 – 2022. The Active 

Lives Children and Young People Survey for this period shows that across England, 

activity levels are back in line with those seen pre-pandemic (academic year 2018-

2019). The proportion who are active, undertaking an average of 60+ minutes per 

day has increased by 2.6%, meaning there are 219,000 more active children and 

young people compared to 12 months earlier. The proportion who are less active, 

undertaking less than an average of 30 minutes per day, has decreased by 2.3%, 

meaning there are 143,000 fewer less active children and young people.  

 

2.20 The data shows across England 47.2% of children and young people (3.4 million) 

are meeting the Chief Medical Officers’ guidelines of taking part in sport and 

physical activity for an average of 60 minutes or more every day. Meanwhile, 30.1% 

(2.2 million) do less than an average of 30 minutes a day. 

 

2.21 In comparison, the results for South Kesteven for the same period demonstrated 

46.4% of children and young people were considered to be active, which is up by 

0.9% on the previous year. 25% of children and young people were considered to 

be fairly active, which is up by 4.8% on the previous year, whilst 28.9% of children 

and young people were considered to be less active, which represents a reduction 

of 5.4% compared to the previous year. 

 

28

https://activelives.sportengland.org/


2.22 The next Active Lives Adult survey data is due for release in April 2023. It is 

recommended this is reported to a future meeting of Culture and Visitor Economy 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee as part of the regular six-monthly updates. 

 

3. Key Considerations 

 
3.1 The Council’s Leisure Team continue to work on the delivery of the Sport and 

Physical Activity Strategy, collaborating with the Council’s leisure provider 

LeisureSK Ltd and a range of partners across South Kesteven.  

 

4. Other Options Considered 
 

4.1 The Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee have 

previously agreed to receive six-monthly updates on the delivery of the Council’s 

Sport and Physical Activity Strategy.  

 

5. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

5.1 The Sport and Physical Activity Strategy provides a basis for the Council to deliver 

on its ambition to increase health and wellbeing outcomes across the district. 

Members are encouraged to suggest enhancements to the extent and clarity of the 

information produced for the next six-monthly update report. 

 

6.       Background Papers 

 
6.1 Sport and Physical Activity Strategy - Report to Culture and Visitor Economy 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Published 14 June 2022, available online at:  

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s34704/Sport%20and%20Phy

sical%20Activity%20Strategy%20Report.pdf 

  

6.2  South Kesteven Sport and Physical Activity Strategy 2021-2026, available online 

at:  http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=28041&p=0 

 

7. Appendices 
 

7.1 Appendix A – Delivery of the Sport and Physical Activity Action Plan 

 

29

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s34704/Sport%20and%20Physical%20Activity%20Strategy%20Report.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s34704/Sport%20and%20Physical%20Activity%20Strategy%20Report.pdf
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=28041&p=0


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A – Delivery of the Sport and Physical Activity Action Plan 

Activity 
Area 

Theme Action to Date Future Actions 

Active 
Society 

Ensure 
participation  
is affordable and  
accessible to the 
whole  
community 

Working with LeisureSK Ltd to develop a 
calendar of community events to attend to 
encourage discussion around healthy, active 
lifestyles. These events have included local 
summer fayres, Wyndham Park May Day and 
Summer Markets, The Lincolnshire Show, and 
providing support for the Council’s Queen’s 
Baton Relay. 
 
One You Lincolnshire provided a new fully 
funded 12-week programme called Heart & Sole 
for residents based in and around Grantham, 
which was launched at Wyndham Park Visitor 
Centre. This was targeted at residents who do 
not currently achieve 150 minutes of physical 
activity per week.  
 
Grantham Meres Leisure Centre continues to 
host holiday activities partnered with Fit for Sport 
to enable opportunities to stay active outside of 
term time. Fit for Sport have continued to be 
successful with the Holiday Activities and Food 
Programme (HAF) funding across it’s camps 
which has allowed primary school children who 
receive benefits related free school meals to 
access the camps. 

Good Boost funding has been secured 
and is planned to commence at Bourne 
Leisure Centre. This is an NHS 
recognised product, delivered through a 
series of pre-recorded exercises on a 
tablet which are accessed by individuals 
via personalised log on details. The 
objective of Good Boost is to bring new 
users to facilities, particularly those from 
less active backgrounds, including older 
adults, those with long term conditions, 
those overweight and obese, and those in 
recovery from cancer and cardiac illness. 
  
Good Boost funding has been applied for 
through the Together Fund application 
which is being managed by Active 
Lincolnshire with the aim of launching the 
scheme at Stamford Leisure Pool and 
Grantham Meres Leisure Centre. 
 
Working with Cliff Edge Cycles, Inspire+ 
and LeisureSK Ltd to deliver an event in 
Wyndham Park in the first week of school 
summer holidays, focusing on 
encouraging cycling with a range of local 
organisations.  
 

31

A
ppendix A



Encourage 
physical  
activity as a 
holistic  
approach to 
wellbeing,  
including a focus 
on  
mental health 

Delivered the ‘Community Connector for Mental 
Health’ event in partnership with the 
Neighbourhood Lead, Stamford Health 
Education Awareness Charity (SHEAC), 
Mindspace Stamford and the Lincolnshire 
Partnerships Foundation Trust (LPFT). This 
event brought together 31 Stamford based 
organisations, with the objective of the day to 
hear about personalisation techniques to 
support people’s mental health and well-being, 
and meet others in the community to develop 
collaborative working.  
 
Working with health partners to promote 
opportunities to be active to help with overall 
health and wellbeing.  
 
LeisureSK Ltd and Council officers supported a 
Living with Diabetes event at Stamford Town 
Hall on Monday 14th November 2022. This was 
a valuable opportunity to speak to residents 
about the benefits of physical activity for all, 
including diabetes sufferers and the benefits of 
being active. 
 
As part of the Council’s wellbeing offering, 120 
Officers from across the organisation took part in 
the #TeamSK Big Step Challenge. 

Continue to support work in the Deepings 
to establish a mental health organisation 
to coordinate activity and work with local 
residents on projects related to health and 
wellbeing.  
 
Continue to work with health colleagues 
from the NHS neighbourhoods’ team and 
social prescribers on an integrated care 
systems approach. The objective is to 
offer 6-month or annual update meetings 
to continue this valuable networking. 
 
Planning is underway for a ‘Healthy Living 
with Long Term Conditions’ event 
scheduled for Monday 20th February at 
Stamford Arts Centre. This event is free of 
charge and will be available for members 
of the public to attend. The Council has 
also partnered up with SHEAC, 
Mindspace Stamford, One You 
Lincolnshire and ‘We are Undefeatable’ 
for this event. The event aims to focus on 
supporting those living with long term 
health conditions, providing opportunities 
to seek valuable advice on undertaking 
physical activity, from a range of 
organisations. 
 
To provide additional support through 
Mental Health Awareness Week, 
commencing 22nd May 2023.   

32



To continue to provide physical and 
wellbeing initiatives within the Council, 
raising awareness through a range of 
different challenges and charities, such as 
cancer awareness days and ‘Coast to 
Coast’.  
 
Produce a wellbeing map for The 
Deepings.  

Active 
Place 

Invest in the 
Council’s  
leisure facilities to  
ensure that they 
meet  
the needs of 
customers 

The LeisureSK Ltd Annual Customer 
Satisfaction Survey was completed in March 
2022 to collect feedback from centre users to 
ensure facilities meet their expectations and 
needs. The team at LeisureSK Ltd have used 
these results as part of their programming and 
planning reviews. 
 
The Sport England Moving Communities survey 
was undertaken in September 2022, showing 
overall satisfaction was an average of 77.72% 
across the LeisureSK Ltd managed facilities. 
Grantham’s results were 80.33%, Bourne’s 
80.7% and Stamford’s 71.5%.  
 
The Council’s leisure provider LeisureSK Ltd 
invested £137,000 in refurbishing the fitness 
suite and studio at Bourne Leisure Centre in 
November 2022.  This included new equipment 
throughout and the addition of some fully 
Inclusive Fitness Initiative (IFI) accredited fitness 
equipment which enables both disabled and 

The next LeisureSK Annual Customer 
Satisfaction Survey is due to be 
completed between February and March 
2023. 
 
Continue to monitor customer satisfaction 
levels via surveys and other data to 
ensure that the facilities meet the needs of 
customers. This includes monitoring 
feedback included on the monthly leisure 
monitoring reports.  
 
The Council’s Property and Leisure 
Teams have been working through the 
condition surveys and will continue to 
work through these prioritising works 
based on severity and risk. 
 
Track refurbishment works are due to be 
undertaken in March 2023 at the South 
Kesteven Sports Stadium which will 
improve the surface for competitions being 

33



non-disabled people to benefit from a full body, 
cardiovascular and resistance-based workout.  
 
Full condition surveys of the leisure centres and 
sports stadium have been undertaken with plans 
put in place to address urgent health and safety 
items and those at end of life. 
 
The South Kesteven Sports Stadium has 
achieved UK Athletics TrackMark accreditation 
for the next 3 years which allows it to host Level 
1 competitions. 

hosted at the stadium and attract Level 1 
competitions. 

Explore 
opportunities  
to use parks and 
open  
spaces within the  
district 

Use of Council social media pages to promote 
green spaces across the district and activities 
available in local parks and open spaces. Active 
Lincolnshire have created a map of outdoor 
gyms for residents to view on Lets Move 
Lincolnshire. 
 
One You Lincolnshire used the Visitor Centre at 
Wyndham Park as a base to launch the Heart & 
Sole Challenge in January 2023.  
 
Working in conjunction with Gonerby Hill Foot 
(GHF) Park Action Group, successful funding 
has been awarded by FCC Communities 
Foundation for the refurbishment of the play 
area equipment in Gonerby Hill Foot Park. 
 
The Senior Play area at Wyndham Park was 
successfully completed during the autumn of 
2022 and officially opened in February 2023. 

Continue to develop use of social media, 
web pages and other promotion of green 
and open spaces across the district.  
 
Continue to develop a programme of 
events and activities in Wyndham Park to 
attract visitors and provide opportunities to 
be active.  
 
Active Lincolnshire to film a LeisureSK Ltd 
instructor using Wyndham Park outdoor 
gym and delivering a workout to promote 
outdoor spaces.  
 
Continue to work with the GHF Park 
Action Group to deliver the refurbishment 
of the play equipment at GHF park. 

34

https://letsmovelincolnshire.com/activities/outdoor-gym/
https://letsmovelincolnshire.com/activities/outdoor-gym/


This was funded by the FCC Communities 
Foundation Landfill Communities Fund. 

Active 
People 

Support a broad 
range  
of sport and 
physical  
activity 
opportunities  
that reflect the 
interests  
and needs of the  
community and 
visitors  
to the district 

Supporting the use of the Activity Finder with 
Active Lincolnshire which now boasts 260 
activities or clubs easily accessible to residents 
in South Kesteven.  
 
Wellbeing walks are currently taking place from 
Bourne Leisure Centre on a Wednesday and 
Friday morning, and from Stamford Leisure Pool 
on a Thursday afternoon.  
 
New fitness class timetables were launched in 
January 2023 at Bourne Leisure Centre and 
Grantham Meres Leisure Centre.  
 
Half term swim crash courses are being 
provided at each of the leisure facilities including 
Mermaid Fins, Aqua Quidditch and Rookie 
Lifeguarding. 
 
The LeisureSK Ltd App is proving popular with a 
total of 10,516 downloads.  
 
Partnership with the ‘We are Undefeatable’ 
campaign so physical activity is accessible to all 
people, targeting those living with long term 
health conditions.  
 

Continue to promote use of the Activity 
Finder online to signpost residents to 
activities more easily. Encourage other 
providers to sign up to the platform to 
ensure a wide range of activities are 
captured – aided by the production and 
data collection for wellbeing maps. 
 
LeisureSK Ltd to launch wellbeing walks 
from Grantham Meres Leisure Centre and 
in The Deepings in March 2023. 
Lincolnshire Co-op will be delivering 
further walk leader training on 28th 
February 2023.  
 
Timetable and programming for leisure 
facilities are being continuously reviewed 
and new initiatives added to ensure there 
are a broad range of activities on offer to 
residents and visitors.   
 
Continue to develop the LeisureSK Ltd 
app to provide new classes and up to date 
information on services and activities 
available. 
 
A Together Fund application was 
submitted by the Council on 10th January 
2023 to Active Lincolnshire, to seek 

35



Aqua Cycling classes have been launched at 
Stamford Leisure Pool which is unique to the 
district. 
Junior Gym sessions have been launched at 
Bourne Leisure Centre and Grantham Meres 
Leisure Centre. 

 

funding for 26 weeks activity, including 
equipment, to focus on delivering activity 
for Older Adults and people with Longer 
Term Health Conditions in The Deepings.  
 
Further instructor training to be delivered 
to increase the offering of Aqua Cycling 
and to also launch Hydro Fighter classes 
at Stamford Leisure Pool. 

Work with the 
Council’s  
leisure provider  
and partners to 
run  
health 
intervention  
programmes that 
result  
in improved 
health  
and wellbeing for  
residents and 
deliver  
outreach activities 
in  
our communities 

The exercise on Prescription scheme 
recommenced at Stamford Leisure Pool (15 
active clients), and Grantham Meres Leisure 
Centre (9 active clients), whilst it continues 
successfully at Bourne Leisure Centre with 23 
active and 31 on a waiting list.  
 
LeisureSK Ltd have worked in partnership with 
One You Lincolnshire and Gloji to provide 
weight loss support which is app based and is 
available via referral including self-referral.  
 
LeisureSK Ltd also provide Junior Gym sessions 
at Grantham Meres Leisure Centre and Bourne 
Leisure Centre.  
 
Active Life classes continue to run at Grantham 
Meres Leisure Centre, providing exercise 
classes and activities for those aged 50+.  
 
Warm spaces initiative launched across all 
LeisureSK Ltd centres in January 2023. 

Exercise on Prescription waiting lists (51 
across the district) to continue to be 
cleared.   
 
More marketing is required, especially for 
GP’s and hospitals. 
 
Good Boost classes to be launched at 
Bourne Leisure Centre, which deliver 
personalised exercise programmes with a 
focus on people living with 
musculoskeletal (MSK) conditions.  
 
Pre and Post Natal classes (pool and 
studio based) to be launched in early 2023 
across all LeisureSK Ltd centres.  
 
Continue to develop the Special 
Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) 
swimming lessons across all centres. 

36



 A review will of the Warm Spaces to be 
undertaken in March to see if activity can 
then be provided to regular participants. 

 

Active 
System 

Recognise that  
physical activity is  
more than 
participation  
in sport and 
includes  
activities such as  
walking, dancing 
and  
gardening 

Council Officers have been part of The Ageing 
and Physical Activity Network, hosted by The 
University of Lincoln, identifying how we can 
increase opportunities to those living in more 
rural areas.  
 
Work has taken place with Active Lincolnshire to 
support the delivery of projects in local schools 
and the community to promote active travel 
opportunities and building confidence to cycle. 
  
Social media messages, from both the Council 
and LeisureSK Ltd, have promoted ways that 
residents can be physically active and receive 
information related to general health and 
wellbeing. 
 
Supporting the work of Don’t Lose Hope in 
Bourne to promote the community garden.  

Continue to work with Lincolnshire County 
Council and other partners on projects to 
promote active travel.  
 
The opportunity to deliver virtual ‘We are 
Undefeatable’ sessions in village halls will 
be explored as this provides an 
opportunity for exercise without a physical 
instructor.  
 
Ensure positive messages are 
communicated to residents in a variety of 
ways about how activity can be integrated 
into everyday life.  
 
Support creation of walking sport groups 
and reintroduce programme of activities at 
leisure facilities.  
 
Educating the importance of gardening 
through social housing residents in the 
district, on both physical and mental well-
being.  
 
Establish walking and cycling routes to 
open spaces and leisure facilities within 
the district.  

37



Facilitate 
partnerships  
and collaboration  
between 
authorities,  
organisations,  
communities, and  
groups to 
empower  
those who can 
make  
change 

Council Officers have continued to contribute to 
the districts health and wellbeing strategy and 
ensure activities are aligned to the county wide 
strategy - Let’s Move Lincolnshire. 
 
Worked in partnership with a wide range of 
organisations utilising social media and 
webpages to collectively promote activities.  

Officer working group to create, develop 
and move forward with the district’s health 
and wellbeing strategy.  
 
The Council’s Leisure Team is part of the 
organisation for the SK Wellbeing event 
scheduled to take place on 25 February 
2023, which is being held at the Jubilee 
Church Life Centre. There will be a range 
of organisations there that support 
physical wellbeing, as well as mental and 
financial wellbeing.  
 
Continue to work with other organisations 
to promote activities and events taking 
place. 

 

38



 
 

       

Culture and Visitor 
Economy Overview 
and Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
 

28 February 2023 
 
Report of Councillor Adam Stokes, 
Deputy Leader of the Council and 
Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Leisure 
 

 

 

LeisureSK Ltd Performance Report  
 

Report Author 

Michael Chester, Team Leader – Leisure, Parks and Open Spaces 

  Michael.chester@southkesteven.gov.uk  

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

To provide an update to the Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee on the performance of LeisureSK Ltd against the leisure management contract 

objectives. 

 

 Recommendations 

It is recommended the Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee: 

1. Notes the contents of this report and suggests any enhancements to the level 
of information provided for inclusion in the next six-monthly update. 

 

 

 

39

Agenda Item 11

mailto:Michael.chester@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No 

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

Growth and our economy 

Healthy and strong communities 

High Performing Council 

 

Which wards are impacted?      Two or more wards 

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, staffing, 

community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s declaration 

of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 There are no financial implications from the Council’s perspective in relation to this 

report.  The management fee payable to LeisureSK is approved by Council as part 

of the annual budget setting process. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Assistant Director of 

Finance 

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2 The Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee is responsible 

for assessing the performance of LeisureSK Ltd in line with the Council’s objectives 

as set out in the Leisure Services Contract.  The Committee has previously agreed 

to receive six monthly updates on performance. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Graham Watts, Assistant Director of 

Governance and Monitoring Officer  

 

Risk and Mitigation 

 

1.3 The performance of LeisureSK Ltd is monitored by the Board of Directors.  As part 

of this, a risk register is maintained and regularly reviewed at Board Meetings.  

 

Risk Implications reviewed by: Tracey Elliott, Governance & Risk Officer 

 

2. Background to the Report 

40



 

2.1  The Council’s Corporate Plan 2020 to 2023 sets out the key priorities for the Council 

and its leisure service. Investing in the health of the district by improving leisure 

provision and providing a high-quality offer, helps to support the Council’s aims on 

increasing the health and wellbeing of communities. The Council’s leisure contract 

with LeisureSK Ltd focusses on embedding an approach that seeks to continuously 

improve service delivery and customer experience.  

 

2.2 On 14 June 2022, this Committee received a report detailing progress against the 

contract’s Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for the period October 2021 to March 

2022 and the balanced scorecard used by LeisureSK Ltd’s Board of Directors to 

assess the performance of the company.  

 

2.3 The remainder of this report covers activities which has taken place since April 

2022. For ease of reading, five subsets have been created as follows:  

 

A. An overview of LeisureSK Ltd Staffing 

B. An overview of LeisureSK Ltd Community and Outreach Activities  

C. An update on the Council’s Leisure Centres  

D. An update on the work of the Council’s Leisure Team 

E. LeisureSK Ltd Performance Monitoring 

 

(A) LeisureSK Ltd Staffing  
 

2.4 LeisureSK Ltd has continued to face operational challenges over recent months 

especially relating to the increase in costs of materials from suppliers and the 

significant rise in energy costs. This all aligns with the national picture and 

challenges facing other leisure providers nationally. 

 

2.5 The recruitment of suitably qualified staff has also continued to be challenging.  

However, the Board of Directors appointed a new Contract Manager who joined the 

company in April 2022. Since joining the company, the Contract Manager, with the 

support of the Board, has reviewed the company staffing structure to try and 

mitigate the cost increases without impacting upon the levels of service delivery and 

customer experience.  

 

2.6 To aid with the wider recruitment and retention of staff, the Board of Directors 

commissioned LeisureSK Ltd and their human resources provider, The HR Branch, 

to undertake a comprehensive job evaluation of all roles within the company. This 

was finalised in April 2022 with job roles being scored and aligned to a pay grading 

scale which has provided consistency across the company and ensured that pay is 

competitive with other leisure providers. 

 

2.7 In July 2022, the General Manager at Grantham Meres Leisure Centre left the 

company, to pursue a career in the Council’s Leisure and Culture team. A period of 

interim support was provided by the centre’s Operations Manager covering the 

41



vacant position, supported by the Contract Manager. A replacement General 

Manager joined the company in late November 2022, coming from a background of 

private leisure management. 

 

2.8 The Board of Directors have been keen to ensure the employees of LeisureSK Ltd 

are being invested in and developed.  As part of this, Managers have been enrolled 

onto a Management Development Course which has been developed and delivered 

by The HR Branch over a period of six months.  The aim of the course is to provide 

standardisation in processes and procedures, whilst giving Managers the 

confidence to deal with HR related issues that may occur in the workplace.  

 

2.9 In addition to this, LeisureSK Ltd are working with a national apprenticeship 

provider, Lifetime Training, to deliver: the Chartered Institute of Management (CMI) 

Level 3 Team Leader Supervisor qualification; the CMI Level 5 Operations 

Departmental Manager; Level 2 Leisure Team Member; and Level 3 Leisure Duty 

Manager. The Operations Manager at Grantham Meres Leisure Centre is in the 

process of undertaking the NEBOSH General Certificate (National Examination 

Board in Occupational Safety and Health). 

 

2.10 LeisureSK Ltd have upskilled two senior Managers onto the Royal Lifesaving 

Society’s (RLSS) National Pool Supervisor Qualification (NPSQ) tutor programme. 

This is a two-day course aimed at staff responsible for supervising lifeguards and 

managing essential health and safety within a leisure centre or swimming pool 

environment. This training is planned to be delivered to Duty Manager’s and Senior 

Leisure Assistant’s during 2023. 

 

(B) LeisureSK Ltd Community and Outreach Activities 
 

2.11 LeisureSK Ltd continue to develop their programme of community and outreach 

activities promoting and increasing their health and wellbeing offering. A wide 

variety of events have been attended including:  

 

• Local school summer fayres, Wyndham Park May Day and Summer Markets, 

The Lincolnshire Show 

• Support for the Council’s Queens Baton Relay 

• National Fitness Day 

• A Dementia awareness and Living with Diabetes event in Stamford.  

 

2.12 Other initiatives introduced within the centres by LeisureSK Ltd include:  

 

• Exercise on Prescription in partnership with One You Lincolnshire across all 

facilities.  This is a 12-week structured physical activity programme following 

referral by a health care professional aimed at those doing less than 150 mins 

of physical activity a week 

• Aqua Cycling at Stamford 

42



• Wellbeing Walks in partnership with the Lincolnshire Co-op at Bourne and 

Stamford 

• Junior Gym Sessions at Bourne and Grantham 

• Warm Spaces launched across all centres from January 2023.  

 

2.13 LeisureSK Ltd are planning to introduce further initiatives across the centres with 

the team undertaking specific training to launch these and expand on the offer which 

includes: 

 

• Additional Wellbeing Walk leader training 

• Good Boost - an app-based therapeutic aquatic exercise programme for 

people with musculoskeletal conditions 

• Pre and Post-natal classes 

• Additional Fitness Instructors are being upskilled to deliver Exercise on 

Prescription 

• Introduction of Hydro-Fighter classes at Stamford which is a mixed martial arts 

and boxercise style class adapted for the pool environment 

• Introduction of Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) swimming 

lessons across all centres. 

 

2.14 Partnerships continue to be developed between the Council, LeisureSK Ltd and 

organisations within the county such as One You Lincolnshire, Active Lincolnshire 

and Inspire+, local GP surgeries and social prescribers, and Shine Lincolnshire. 

 

(C) Update on Council Leisure Centres 
 

Bourne Leisure Centre 

 

2.15 Following approval at Cabinet in September 2022, Bourne Leisure Centre 

underwent a £137,000 gym refurbishment programme in November 2022. This 

included brand new equipment, creation of a dedicated studio space, a separate 

free weights area, and new gym flooring throughout. This has resulted in a small 

uplift in the monthly membership cost and has contributed to an increase in 

membership sales within the centre. 

 

Deepings Leisure Centre 

 

2.16 In November 2022, the decision was made at Full Council to permanently close the 

Deepings Leisure Centre and not to proceed with the previously agreed 

refurbishment plans, to hand the asset back to Lincolnshire County Council (LCC), 

and to also transfer the management of the Linchfield Road Playing Fields back to 

LCC. 

 

2.17 Council Officers met with representatives from LCC on 16 January 2023 to formally 

hand the keys and responsibility for Deepings Leisure Centre back to them.  

 

43



2.18 Ongoing discussions are taking place with Council Officers, LCC and The Anthem 

Trust (Deepings School) to transfer the management of the Linchfield Road Playing 

Fields. Whilst these conversations are ongoing LeisureSK Ltd continue to manage 

the bookings for the playing fields and the Council remains responsible for the 

grounds maintenance of the pitches. 

 

 Grantham Meres Leisure Centre and South Kesteven Sports Stadium 

 

2.19 The Table Tennis Centre (TTC) at Grantham Meres Leisure Centre continued to be 

used by the National Health Service (NHS) as a COVID-19 mass vaccination centre 

until they announced its closure in December 2022. Since its operation began in 

December 2020, nearly 350,000 vaccinations have been given to patients from 

1,695 different GP practices across the country at the Meres Vaccination Centre. 

 

2.20 During the operation of the vaccination centre, sports hall bookings were 

successfully relocated into other parts of the centre. In January 2023, the LeisureSK 

Ltd Board of Directors agreed to the TTC remaining closed to bookings until such 

time it was required, which will help to reduce utility usage to compensate for the 

rising energy costs the company is facing. 

 

2.21 LeisureSK Ltd have successfully launched Meres Lives events, securing the acts 

directly, and with the Council’s Arts Team providing ticketing services.  A recent 

concert by a Queen tribute act, The Bohemians, resulted in an audience of 1,100 

people.  

 

2.22 Working in conjunction with Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue and LeisureSK Ltd, the 

South Kesteven Sports Stadium received a renewed safety certificate in March 

2022 under the Safety of Sports Ground Act 1975 and The Fire Safety and Safety 

of Places of Sport Act 1987. 

 

2.23 As a partnership LeisureSK Ltd, Grantham Athletics Club and the Council have 

been working towards a Level 1 competition licence for the Sports Stadium by UK 

Athletics.  This will enable the stadium to be used for competitive athletic events. 

 

2.24 2022 saw a strong return of sporting and community events at Grantham Meres 

Leisure Centre, with the David Ross Educational Trust (DRET) summer games 

returning for a two-day event. Other events have included the Inspire+ Games 

which was a three-day event, and Regional Army and Air Cadet athletics 

competitions. 

 

 Stamford Leisure Pool 

 

2.25 Additional gym equipment has been installed at Stamford following on from the 

refurbishment project at Bourne Leisure Centre, utilising some of the outgoing 

equipment as a result of member feedback. LeisureSK Ltd have upgraded the 

lighting throughout all public areas of the centre, replacing old fluorescent tube 

44



lighting with more energy efficient LED lighting.  This includes replacing the original 

pool hall lighting being upgraded from 1500W halogens to 160W LEDs. 

 

2.26 Following on from customer feedback a programme review has been undertaken in 

October 2022 which has resulted in an increase in opening hours at the start of 

each weekday. This has allowed for additional public swimming, club swimming 

sessions and Aquafit classes. Further programming reviews are underway to 

explore the possibility of extending the hours in the evening to allow for additional 

group exercise classes and lane swimming. This will then bring the centre’s 

operational hours back in line to what was being operated prior to COVID-19. 

 

(D) Work of the Council’s Leisure Team  
 

2.27 The Council’s Leisure Team continue to be responsible for regular contract 

monitoring and report into the LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors to ensure LeisureSK 

Ltd are delivering against the contract outcomes and the Council’s objectives, as 

outlined in the Sport and Physical Activity Strategy 2021 – 2026 (see Background 

Papers).  The Team are also responsible for ensuring LeisureSK Ltd provide a high-

quality service which meets the desired levels of cleanliness and presentation and 

offers a positive customer experience. 

 

 (E) LeisureSK Ltd Performance Monitoring  

2.28 Formal monthly contract monitoring meetings, which include all the senior 

management team at LeisureSK Ltd and Officers from the Council’s Leisure Team, 

now take place quarterly with the Council’s Team Leader for Leisure, Parks and 

Open Spaces meeting with the LeisureSK Ltd Contract Manager monthly in 

between.  Any areas of concern from the monitoring visits are raised as an emerging 

trend at the quarterly monitoring meeting for further discussion and resolution. 

 

Balanced Scorecard 

 

2.29 The balanced scorecard covering the leisure centres for the period April 2022 to 

December 2022 can be found at Appendix A.  This provides detailed information 

on the performance of the leisure centres against the leisure contract KPIs together 

with related operational performance information. 

 

2.30 The annual customer satisfaction survey was last conducted in February and March 

2022 receiving a total of 539 responses. The results were presented to this 

Committee in June 2022. LeisureSK Ltd are currently in the process of developing 

the next survey to be distributed electronically throughout February and March 

2023.  

 

2.31 A period of self-monitoring by the LeisureSK Ltd Contract Manager took place from 

May 2022 to July 2022, whilst there was a vacancy in the Council’s Leisure Team.  

From August 2022 the Council’s newly appointed Leisure Officer recommenced site 

45



inspections, which are carried out on an announced and random basis, focussing 

on cleanliness standards, day to day maintenance, and the overall customer 

experience.  This has brought a renewed focus to contract monitoring, and a change 

in reporting format was introduced based on feedback from both Council Officers 

and LeisureSK Ltd’s Management Team.  

 

2.32 Overall, there has been a marked improvement in cleanliness at the facilities with a 

reduced number of customer complaints being received by LeisureSK Ltd or made 

directly to the Council. Where there have been spikes in cleanliness issues, these 

have generally been associated with increased throughput in the centres. The 

monitoring reports for each site now breakdown the individual items requiring 

rectification, rather than the previous reports generalising a specific area of each 

centre. 

 

2.33 The table below outlines the findings from the leisure monitoring visits and the items 

raised for rectification between the period of April 2022 and December 2022. 

  

  

    

Sport England Moving Communities Community Survey 

 

2.34 The Sport England Moving Communities Community Survey has been distributed 

to LeisureSK Ltd’s customers in September 2022 (see Background Papers). The 

focus of the survey was to help Sport England understand perceptions about 

physical activity and active leisure in local communities, and to monitor the sector’s 

performance, sustainability and social value contribution.  

 

2.35 The survey is broken down into four areas which cover satisfaction, net promotor 

score (NPS), which is an index ranging from -100 to 100 that measures the 

willingness of customers to recommend a company's products or services to others, 

in-centre activity and cleanliness. Results from the most recent survey are shown 

in the table below: 

 

Facility  Total Cleanliness 
Items 

Total Maintenance 
and Repair Items 

Apr – Dec 2022 Apr – Dec 2022 

Bourne Leisure Centre 

248 101 

Grantham Meres Leisure 
Centre 373 145 

South Kesteven Sports 
Stadium 240 198 

Stamford Leisure Pool 

260 65 

46



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Full building condition surveys 

 

2.36 The full building condition surveys, carried out across all the Leisure Centres and 

Sports Stadium between March 2022 and May 2022, have been reviewed by the 

Council’s Leisure and Property Teams and presented to an Internal Property 

Management Group, with works being prioritised for completion based on the 

severity and risk identified. These works are taking place in addition to ongoing 

reactive maintenance works which are identified and completed. 

 

2.37 Major works have been completed across all centres with water treatment works 

being undertaken in September 2022 at Grantham Meres Leisure Centre, boiler 

replacement works at Stamford Leisure Pool in December 2022, the air conditioning 

was replaced at Bourne Leisure Centre in September 2022, pool grating was 

replaced at Bourne Leisure Centre in December 2022, three replacement internal 

fire doors were installed at South Kesteven Sports Stadium in September 2022, and 

the entrance door was replaced  at Stamford Leisure Pool in October 2022. 

 

 Annual Health and Safety Audits 

 

2.38 In November 2022 LeisureSK Ltd had their annual Health and Safety audits which 

were conducted by independent consultants Right Directions Ltd.  All compliance 

issues were reviewed across each centre and the results of the audits are shown 

below.  All centres demonstrated an improvement compared to the previous year’s 

rounds of audits. 

 

  

 

 

 

 Bourne 
Leisure 
Centre 

Grantham 
Meres 
Leisure 
Centre 

Stamford 
Leisure Pool 

LeisureSK 
Ltd – 
Contract 
Result 

Responses 
Received 

144 125 120 389 

Satisfaction 80.7% 80.33% 71.5% 77.72% 

NPS 13.67 11.2 -21.66 1.82 

In-centre 
Activity 

79.7% 79.51% 72.38% 77.5% 

Cleanliness 73.23% 75% 51.76% 68.21% 

Centre 
2021 score 2022 score Improvement 

Bourne 63% 85% 22% 

Grantham 67% 71% 4% 

Stamford 65% 81% 16% 

Average 65% 79% 14% 

47



Mechanical and Electrical (M&E) meetings 

 

2.39 Bi-monthly Mechanical and Electrical (M&E) meetings were introduced in October 

2022 between LeisureSK Ltd, Council Officers and Briggs and Forrester (B&F - the 

Council’s maintenance contractor), to discuss maintenance issues to ensure they 

are captured at an early stage and the necessary maintenance actions can be 

planned.  

 

2.40 The availability of contractors to carry out maintenance tasks and repairs has 

continued to be an issue, resulting in a small back log. However, the site teams are 

continuing to work with reliable contractors to resolve this. Additionally, the team at 

Grantham Meres Leisure Centre have recruited an in-house part-time Maintenance 

Assistant for three days per week which has resulted in a noticeable improvement 

to maintenance issues at both the Leisure Centre and Sports Stadium. 

 

3. Key Considerations 

 
3.1 This report provides information on the leisure contract performance and monitoring 

arrangements for LeisureSK Ltd and offers an opportunity for Members to raise any 

concerns around the facilities and the level of service being offered. 

 

4. Other Options Considered 
 

4.1 The Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee have 

previously agreed to receive six monthly updates on performance.  

 

5. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

5.1 The Council has a duty to ensure the leisure contract provides value for money and 

delivers on the Council’s corporate objectives. The information detailed within the 

report provides Members with an opportunity to assess the performance of 

LeisureSK Ltd and to suggest enhancements to the level of information provided for 

inclusion in the next six-monthly update. 

 

6. Background papers 

 
6.1  Moving Communities – Published by Sport England, available online at:  

https://www.sportengland.org/research-and-data/data/moving-communities 

 

6.2 Replacement of Gym Equipment at Bourne Leisure Centre – Report to Cabinet, 

Published 22 September 2022, available online at:  

https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s35721/Replacement%20of

%20Gym%20Equipment%20Bourne%20Leisure%20Centre.pdf 

 

48

https://www.sportengland.org/research-and-data/data/moving-communities
https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s35721/Replacement%20of%20Gym%20Equipment%20Bourne%20Leisure%20Centre.pdf
https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s35721/Replacement%20of%20Gym%20Equipment%20Bourne%20Leisure%20Centre.pdf


6.3 LeisureSK Ltd Performance Report - Report to Culture and Visitor Economy 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee, published 14 June 2022, available online at: 

https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s34702/Performance%20of%

20LeisureSK%20Ltd%20Report.pdf 

 

6.4 Sport and Physical Activity Strategy 2021-2026, available online at:  

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=28041&p=0 

 

7. Appendices 
 

7.1 Appendix A: Balanced Scorecard April 2022 to December 2022. 

 

49

https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s34702/Performance%20of%20LeisureSK%20Ltd%20Report.pdf
https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s34702/Performance%20of%20LeisureSK%20Ltd%20Report.pdf
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=28041&p=0


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 6 
 

Appendix A – LeisureSK Ltd Performance Monitoring Report  

Balanced Scorecard Report 

Objective Measure – Performance 
Indicator 

Bourne Leisure Centre 

Apr 
2022 

May 
2022 

Jun 
2022 

Jul 
2022 

Aug 
2022 

Sept 
2022 

Oct 
2022 

Nov 
2022 

Dec 
2022 

Provide high-quality, accessible 
leisure provision for residents and 
visitors to South Kesteven 

Overall attendance 11794 12433 12223 11799 15625 12656 15442 12696 9393 

Total membership 
numbers: 

• Swim school 

• Fitness 

 
820 
954 

 
865 
970 

 
903 
996 

 
937 
1044 

 
968 
1012 

 
1017 
1027 

 
1038 
1090 

 
1044 
1068 

 

 
1024 
1056 

Attendance: 

• Casual swimming 

• Gym sessions 

 
5884 
2316 

 
5218 
2123 

 
5410 
2687 

 
5196 
1704 

 
9409 
2469 

 
4865 
2906 

 
5966 
2771 

 
3987 
1553 

 
2627 
1985 

Facebook activity 

• Number of posts 

• Total followers 

• Engagement 

 
29 

2761 
10867 

 
28 

2792 
6014 

 
29 

2809 
6944 

 
17 

2855 
11476 

 
8 

2920 
8011 

 
19 

2952 
6214 

 
12 

2982 
6038 

 
5 

3000 
9063 

 
16 

3044 
16983 

Google rating 3.0 3.0 3.1 3.1 3.2 3.2 3.2 3.3 4.4 

Contract monitoring visits 
by the Council’s leisure 
team  

 
1 

 
1 

 
0 

 
0 

 
1 

 
0 

 
2 

 
1 

 
1 

Facility closures 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 1 

Number of 
accidents/incidents 

5 16 5 9 8 11 18 7 5 

Number of high/medium 
risk actions 

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 0 

Establish a culture of growth and 
development  

Courses completed by 
team members 

1 1 1 0 3 0 3 0 0 

51

A
ppendix A



Page 2 of 6 
 

Create an environment where 
employees feel valued, 
empowered, engaged, and 
satisfied 

• New starters 
 

• Vacancies 

0 

2 

0 
 
2 

1 
 
3 

0 
 
2 

4 
 
1 

0 
 
2 

2 
 
2 

1 
 
1 

0 
 
1 

 

Customer Feedback Summary 

 April 2022 – December 2022 

Bourne 
Leisure 
Centre 

• Positive feedback surrounding new group exercise instructors joining the team on both a permanent and 
cover basis adding variety to the class programme. 

• Positive feedback around the friendliness of the team, especially the Lifeguard team, during holiday 
programmes and with themed competitions throughout the year. 

• Positive feedback surrounding the swimming lesson programme and the instructors. 

• Positive feedback about the delivery of the Exercise on Prescription programme. 

• Positive feedback about the replacement hair dryers in the changing rooms and that they are no longer coin 
operated. 

• Positive feedback about the gym refurbishment programme once completed. 

• Negative feedback about the air conditioning faulting in the gym and the poor quality temporary units during 
the heatwave in the summer, until the new units were installed in early September. 

• Negative feedback from customers that the wave machine is out of action and no planned repair date. 

• Negative feedback about the poor quality lighting in the changing rooms which have since been upgraded 
to LED lighting. 

• Negative feedback about the quality of the gym equipment and delays in repairing equipment prior to the 
refurbishment. 

• Negative feedback around free water dispenser only available in the gym and choice of food options in 
vending machine. 

 

 

 

 

52



Page 3 of 6 
 

Balanced Scorecard Report 

Objective Measure – Performance 
Indicator 

Grantham Meres Leisure Centre 

Apr 
2022 

May 
2022 

Jun 
2022 

Jul 
2022 

Aug 
2022 

Sept 
2022 

Oct 
2022 

Nov 
2022 

Dec 
2022 

Provide high-quality, accessible 
leisure provision for residents and 
visitors to South Kesteven 

Overall attendance 41602 39478 41615 31343 28365 45333 69150 40304 24369 

Total membership 
numbers: 

• Swim school 

• Fitness 

 
1340 
1253 

 
1363 
1214 

 
1400 
1252 

 
1405 
1215 

 
1417 
1212 

 
1457 
1210 

 
1447 
1232 

 
1482 
1169 

 
1398 
1112 

Attendance: 

• Casual swimming 

• Gym sessions 

 
5863 
2529 

 
5288 
2641 

 
4975 
4411 

 
7024 
2641 

 
6948 
4053 

 
4270 
5622 

 
4911 
6560 

 
5092 
6890 

 
4819 
5367 

Facebook activity 

• Number of posts 

• Total followers 

• Engagement 

 
43 

5841 
6913 

 
41 

5657 
2980 

 
56 

5628 
8660 

 
38 

5798 
6586 

 
10 

5861 
2314 

 
21 

5884 
4476 

 
7 

5889 
5707 

 
32 

5894 
6192 

 
24 

5922 
6102 

Google rating 4.1 4.1 4.1 4.1 4.1 4.1 4.1 3.7 4.2 

Contract monitoring visits 
by the Council’s leisure 
team  

 
2 

 
1 

 
1 

 
0 

 
2 

 
1 

 
3 

 
2 

 
2 

Facility closures 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Number of 
accidents/incidents 

4 14 15 13 8 3 2 15 11 

Number of high/medium 
risk actions 

5 5 5 5 5 5 5 0 2 

Establish a culture of growth and 
development  

Courses completed by 
team members 

2 1 0 3 0 1 3 2 0 

53



Page 4 of 6 
 

Create an environment where 
employees feel valued, 
empowered, engaged, and 
satisfied 

• New starters 
 

• Vacancies 

0 

3 

3 
 
6 

3 
 
5 

3 
 
2 

3 
 
2 

4 
 
1 

2 
 
1 

1 
 
0 

0 
 
0 

 

Customer Feedback Summary 

 April 2022 – December 2022 

Grantham 
Meres 
Leisure 
Centre 

• Pleasing feedback received from parents whose children attend the Fit for Sport holiday programme and the 
themed sessions 

• Great feedback around a new Fitness Instructor/Group Exercise Instructor joining the team and introduction of 
new classes delivered by him 

• NHS recognition event that was held received positive feedback 

• Positive feedback surrounding the swim school crash courses and instructors delivering the sessions 

• Praise received from multiple one off sporting events held in the centre and at the Stadium 

• Positive feedback from NHS Blood Doning service 

• Positive feedback over the trial of non bookable swim sessions during the summer holiday period 

• Positive feedback from candidates attending Lifeguard and Swim Instructor courses 

• Pleasing to receive feedback from customers over the improved cleanliness levels around the centre and the 
team being proactive during quiet periods 

• Complaints over the low pressures in the showers throughout the centre 

• Negative feedback from Grantham Swimming Club over swimmers struggling during heavy club sessions 

• Negative feedback regarding anti social behaviour around the centre 

• Complaints over the lengthy delay to replace the gym entrance door following vandalism by a member 

• Negative feedback received over the temperature in the gym during the heatwave 

• Negative feedback about the lack of instructor led group exercise classes 

• Complaints over delays in dry side bookings and changeovers between bookings which have bee addressed 
with the team. 

• Social media complaints over the reduction in pool temperature published 2 months after the reduction had 
been made. 

 

54



Page 5 of 6 
 

Balanced Scorecard Report 

Objective Measure – Performance 
Indicator 

Stamford Leisure Pool 

Apr 
2022 

May 
2022 

Jun 
2022 

Jul 
2022 

Aug 
2022 

Sept 
2022 

Oct 
2022 

Nov 
2022 

Dec 
2022 

Provide high-quality, accessible 
leisure provision for residents and 
visitors to South Kesteven 

Overall attendance 7479 6895 6623 6489 7563 5897 6792 5870 4597 

Total membership 
numbers: 

• Swim school 

• Fitness 

 
756 
494 

 
760 
579 

 
782 
592 

 
791 
567 

 
834 
592 

 
869 
584 

 
869 
592 

 
864 
603 

 
820 
589 

Attendance: 

• Casual swimming 

• Gym sessions 

 
3960 
287 

 
3740 
250 

 
3834 
298 

 
3913 
223 

 
7653 
343 

 
3998 
356 

 
4897 
330 

 
4076 
351 

 
3346 
278 

Facebook activity 

• Number of posts 

• Total followers 

• Engagement 

 
15 

2243 
201 

 
21 

2204 
179 

 
18 

2209 
120 

 
12 

2211 
240 

 
8 

2219 
198 

 
12 

2435 
1001 

 
9 

2452 
1434 

 
12 

2459 
1567 

 
14 

2459 
1567 

Google rating 3.5 3.5 3.6 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 4.0 

Contract monitoring visits 
by the Council’s leisure 
team  

 
1 

 
1 

 
0 

 
0 

 
1 

 
0 

 
2 

 
1 

 
1 

Facility closures 1 0 1 0 0      0 0 0 1 

Number of 
accidents/incidents 

1 1 1 2 2 2 2 3 1 

Number of high/medium 
risk actions 

0 0 0 1 1 1 1 2 2 

Establish a culture of growth and 
development  

Courses completed by 
team members 

2 0 0 0 2 1 1 0 0 

55



Page 6 of 6 
 

Create an environment where 
employees feel valued, 
empowered, engaged, and 
satisfied 

• New starters 
 

• Vacancies 

0 

1 

0 
 
1 

2 
 
2 

1 
 
2 

0 
 
2 

2 
 
2 

2 
 
2 

2 
 
1 

0 
 
1 

 

Customer Feedback Summary 

 April 2022 – December 2022 

Stamford 
Leisure 
Pool 

• Positive feedback over the increase in opening hours reverting to pre-covid operating hours. 

• Positive feedback over cleanliness of changing areas and following deep clean schedule. 

• Great feedback received around the swim school programme and instructors including the standards of 
teaching. 

• Positive feedback from attendees of the Family Splash sessions during the summer holidays and the 
continuation of some sessions which would have previously been cancelled during these peak times. 

• Positive feedback over the new water dispenser in the gym. 

• Feedback received about the politeness of the team. 

• Positive feedback about the Aquafit and Aqua-Cycling instructors. 

• Positive comments from attendees to the Special Educational Needs and Disabilities swim sessions. 

• Negative feedback about the pressure issues in the showers. 

• Negative feedback regarding a change in the pool timetable. 

• Negative feedback surrounding the booking process on the app and website. 

• Some negative feedback during the peak periods over the wave machine not being in operation, website has 
been updated to inform of this. 

• Negative complaints about the age of the building and apparent lack of investment following the announcement 
of a gym refurbishment at Bourne LC. 

• Negative feedback about the pool water and air temperature during the cold weather period prior to the new 
boiler being installed in December, however this then resulted in positive feedback post installation despite an 
unexpected closure whilst being installed. 

 

 

 

56



Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2022/23 

WORK PROGRAMME 

 

 

REPORT TITLE ISSUE PURPOSE 
ORIGINATED/COMMITTEE 

HISTORY DATE(S) 
CORPORATE/ 

PRIORITY 

 

28 February 2023 

Verbal presentation 
from the Chief 
Executive of 
Destination 
Lincolnshire 

To receive an introduction to Destination 
Lincolnshire by the Chief Executive, 
Charlotte Goy. 

A short introduction to 
Destination 
Lincolnshire, how the 
organisation supports 
South Kesteven and 
how this could link into 
the planned visitor 
economy strategy  

As requested at the previous 
meeting held on 6 December 
2022 

Growth and our 
Economy 

Update on Heritage 
Action Zone shop 
front 
improvements in 
Grantham 

To assess the impact of the investment in 
helping breathe new life into the historic high 
street of Grantham for the communities and 
businesses that use them 
 
Lead Officer: Jon Hinde (Head of 
Economic Development) 
Claire Saunders (High Street Heritage 
Action Zone Project Manager) 

To provide an update 
on key projects 
identified for delivery, 
following the previous 
update in September 
2021 

 Growth and our 
Economy 

Arts Service 
Transitional 
Funding (Verbal 
Update) 

As the authority who had received money 
from the Arts Council National Portfolio, 
South Kesteven District Council is eligible to 
get transition money from the Arts Council 
Transition Programme  
  
Lead Officers: Karen Whitfield (Assistant 
Director – Culture and Leisure) 

To receive an update 
on why the application 
for National Portfolio 
Funding was 
unsuccessful and to 
receive information on 
future opportunities to 

 Healthy and 
Strong 
Communities 

57

A
genda Item

 12



REPORT TITLE ISSUE PURPOSE 
ORIGINATED/COMMITTEE 

HISTORY DATE(S) 
CORPORATE/ 

PRIORITY 

engage with the Arts 
Council 

Sport and Physical 
Activity Strategy 
Action Plan six-
monthly update 

To assess progress on the Sports and 
Physical Activity Strategy action plan  
 
Lead Officer: Karen Whitfield (Assistant 
Director for Culture and Leisure) 

To scrutinise 
performance on how 
the Council, together 
with partners, is 
delivering 
improvements in the 
provision and 
participation levels of 
sport and physical 
activity across the 
District 

 Healthy 
and Strong 
Communities 

Performance of 
LeisureSK Ltd 

Six monthly update on the performance of 
LeisureSK Ltd 
 
Lead Officer: Michael Chester (Team 
Leader – Leisure, Parks and Open 
Spaces) 
 
 

To consider the 
performance of 
LeisureSK Ltd 

 
 
 
 

 

FUTURE ITEMS  

Update on Markets To explore how markets 
can provide tangible 
evidence of their valuable 
direct and indirect 
economic impact 
 
Lead Officer: Jon Hinde 
(Head of Economic 
Development) 

To provide an update to 
Members on market 
development, charges 
modelling and insight into 
the economic impact of the 
markets across the District  

Agenda item requested by 
the Committee Vice-
Chairman during 14 June 
2022 meeting 

Healthy 
and Strong 
Communities 

58



REPORT TITLE ISSUE PURPOSE 
ORIGINATED/COMMITTEE 

HISTORY DATE(S) 
CORPORATE/ 

PRIORITY 

Update on the 
Inspirational Women of 
South Kesteven events 
and review of a district-
wide Blue Plaque Guide 
and Information Trails 

To support a key theme of 
the Corporate Plan to help 
create ‘healthy and strong 
communities’ by 
celebrating and enhancing 
the rich history of the 
District. To ensure 
alignment with the 
Inspirational Women of 
South Kesteven Film and 
consider if the format could 
be expanded to cover the 
District 
 
Lead Officers: Karen 
Whitfield (Assistant 
Director – Culture and 
Leisure) and  
Jon Hinde (Head of 
Economic Development) 

To examine the proposed 
events aligned to 
Inspirational Women of 
South Kesteven and the 
review of a district-wide 
Blue Plaque Guide and 
Information Trails  

Agenda item requested by 
the Chairman of the 
Council during a meeting 
held on 18 July 2022 

Healthy and Strong 
Communities 

59



REMIT 

The remit of the Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be to work alongside Cabinet Members to assist 

with the development of policy and to scrutinise decisions in respect of, but not limited to: 

• Arts 

• Heritage 

• Markets and Fairs 

• Sports 

• Visitor Economy 

 

 

 

 

  

60


	Agenda
	4 Minutes from the meeting held on 6 December 2022
	Minutes

	5 Updates from the previous meeting
	8 Update on Heritage Action Zone shop front improvements in Grantham
	10 Sport and Physical Activity Strategy Action Plan six-monthly update
	Appendix A Delivery of Sport and Physical Activity Action Plan

	11 Performance of LeisureSK Ltd
	Appendix A LeisureSK Ltd Performance Monitoring Report

	12 Work Programme 2022-2023

